

Journal of the Senate

FORTY-SECOND DAY

SENATE CHAMBER, TOPEKA, KANSAS
Wednesday, March 16, 2016, 2:30 p.m.

The Senate was called to order by Vice President King.

The roll was called with 39 senators present.

Senator Melcher was excused.

Invocation by Reverend Cecil Washington, Jr.:

Heavenly Father, You've chosen to bring Your influence into our lives through different human authorities. That we may lead peaceful, quiet, Godly lives, You said in 1 Timothy 2:1-4, that it would be good and pleasing to You, for us to pray...to pray for all of those You have placed in positions of authority. In addition to those You have elevated in the political realm, we're blessed to honor and pray for those in authority in the spiritual realm. You've blessed us to have several Pastors present today. You also said in Hebrews 13:17 that we should obey and submit to our spiritual leaders because You have them keeping watch over our souls, guarding our spiritual welfare. So, Lord, as we pray for them, keep us reminded of the tremendous weight of responsibility they carry. Help us, as congregants, to contribute to the joy, rather than the frustration of their leadership, realizing that if we make things difficult for them, You said, we would make things difficult for ourselves. Help us to ease their burdens. And even when we do mess up...even when we don't cooperate with our Pastors, help them to not take it personally. Clarify things for them, as You did for Your Prophet in 1 Samuel 8:7. You told that man of God that it wasn't him they were rejecting but it was You. So, again Lord, please encourage all of our leaders. Bless all of those with authoritative responsibilities; domestically, for our homes; politically, for our government and spiritually, for our souls. I come to You in the precious name of Jesus, Amen and Amen

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice President King.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

SB 513, AN ACT concerning school districts; creating the student physical privacy act, by Committee on Ways and Means.

REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was referred to Committee as indicated:

Judiciary: **HB 2660**.

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Announcing passage of **Sub SB 103; SB 175.**

INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND SENATE RESOLUTIONS

Senators Arpke, Abrams, Baumgardner, Bowers, Bruce, Denning, Donovan, Faust-Goudeau, Fitzgerald, Francisco, Haley, Hawk, Hensley, Holland, Holmes, Kelly, Kerschen, King, Knox, LaTurner, Longbine, Love, Lynn, Masterson, McGinn, Melcher, O'Donnell, Olson, Ostmeyer, Petersen, Pettey, Pilcher-Cook, Powell, Pyle, V. Schmidt, Smith, Tyson, Wagle, Wilborn and Wolf introduced the following Senate resolution, which was read:

SENATE RESOLUTION No. 1780—

A RESOLUTION commending the ministers, pastors, priests and rabbis of Kansas for their leadership and commitment to improving lives.

WHEREAS, There are hosts of ministers, pastors, priests and rabbis serving throughout Kansas; and

WHEREAS, They produce God-honoring and prosperous families that help to nurture the spirits of future generations; and

WHEREAS, They preach and teach in ways that impact and enrich lives, causing many to live in more fulfilling ways; and

WHEREAS, As shepherds, who are to protect, they correct wrongs, reflect justice and seek fairness in organizations, families and government; and

WHEREAS, They provide creative approaches to challenges, resulting in better practices; and

WHEREAS, They pioneer the creation of new programs, policies and services; and

WHEREAS, They help cultivate people's strengths and challenge people to step up and step out in communities: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the State of Kansas: That we commend our ministers, pastors, priests and rabbis for their leadership in villages, counties, cities and our state and for their priceless commitment to improving lives. We thank God for each one of them; and

Be it further resolved: That the Secretary of the Senate shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Senator Arpke.

On emergency motion of Senator Arpke **SR 1780** was adopted unanimously.

Guests present were Kenneth Harder, Kenneth Isaac, Diane Isaac, Jason Guenther, David Froese, Susan Froese, Jane Flora-Swick, Pamela Mason, Steve Gee, Michael Garner, Susan Garnet, Lou Counselman, Daniel Ensz, Kathy Ensz, Vicki Taylor, Reg Wescott, Linda Wescott, William Graves, Dalton Glasscock and Colby Rankin.

The senators honored the guests with a standing ovation.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate resolved itself into Committee of the Whole, for consideration of bills on the calendar under the heading of General Orders with Senator Petersen in the chair.

On motion of Senator Petersen the following report was adopted:

SB 454; HB 2454 be passed.

SB 421; HB 2446, HB 2447, HB 2462, HB 2501, HB 2545 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, and the bills be passed as amended.

A motion by Senator Baumgardner to amend **HB 2545** failed and the following amendment was rejected: on page 2, in line 40, after the stricken material by inserting "or";

On page 3, in line 1, by striking all after "information"; by striking all in lines 2 through 7; in line 8, by striking all before the period;

On page 6, in line 17, after the stricken material by inserting "or"; in line 21, by striking all after "information"; by striking all in lines 22 through 27; in line 28, by striking all before the period

Upon the showing of five hands a roll call vote was requested.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 14; Nays 21; Present and Passing 4; Absent or Not Voting 1.

Yeas: Baumgardner, Bowers, Faust-Goudeau, Francisco, Haley, Hawk, Hensley, Holland, Lynn, McGinn, Pettey, V. Schmidt, Tyson, Wilborn.

Nays: Abrams, Arpke, Bruce, Denning, Donovan, Fitzgerald, Holmes, Kerschen, King, Knox, LaTurner, Love, Masterson, Olson, Ostmeyer, Petersen, Pilcher-Cook, Powell, Pyle, Smith, Wagle.

Present and Passing: Kelly, Longbine, O'Donnell, Wolf.

Absent or Not Voting: Melcher.

The committee report on **HB 2112** recommending **S Sub HB 2112** be adopted, and the substitute bill be passed.

Sub HB 2151 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, be further amended by motion of Senator King: on page 1, in line 6, by striking "2014" and inserting "2015";

On page 3, in line 37, by striking "2014" and inserting "2015";

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "2014" and inserting "2015"

and **Sub HB 2151** be passed as further amended.

SB 457 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, be further amended by motion of Senator Kelly: on page 7, in line 10, after "concerning" by inserting "the progress to reduce the incidence of antipsychotic drug use in elders with dementia, participation in the nursing facility quality and efficiency outcome incentive factor, participation in the culture change and person-centered care incentive program, annual resident satisfaction ratings for Kansas skilled nursing care facilities and" and **SB 457** be passed as further amended.

A motion by Senator Faust-Goudeau to amend **SB 457** was withdrawn.

A motion by Senator Faust-Goudeau to amend **SB 457** failed.

SB 474 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, be further amended by motion of Senator Lynn: on page 4, in line 8, by striking "and"; in line 9, after "(20)" by inserting "an economic impact, market and market impact study; and (21) ";

Also on page 4, also in line 9, by striking "subsections" and inserting "paragraphs"; also in line 9, by striking "(19)" and inserting "(20)"; in line 25, by striking "and"; in line 26, after "hospitality" by inserting "; and

(J) engineering, architectural, legal, consulting, accounting and other indirect costs that exceed 3% of the total STAR bond project costs";

On page 5, in line 7, by striking "or"; in line 9, after "thereto" by inserting "; or (5) for areas which are "blighted areas" as defined by K.S.A. 12-1770a, and amendments thereto, with at least a \$50,000,000 capital investment and \$35,000,000 in projected gross annual sales and which the secretary finds the project meets the requirements in subsection (w)(2)(A) and (B)";

On page 6, following line 21, by inserting:

"Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,164 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-17,164. (a) The governing body of a city may establish one or more STAR bond projects in any area within such city or wholly outside the boundaries of such city. A STAR bond project wholly outside the boundaries of such city must be approved by the board of county commissioners by the passage of a county resolution.

The governing body of a county may establish one or more STAR bond projects in any unincorporated area of the county.

The projects shall be eligible for financing by special obligation bonds payable from revenues described by ~~subsection (a)(1) of~~ K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,169(a)(1), and amendments thereto.

(b) Each STAR bond project shall first be approved by the secretary, if the secretary determines that the proposed project or complex sufficiently promotes, stimulates and develops the general and economic welfare of the state as described in K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,160, and amendments thereto. The secretary, upon approving the project, may approve such financing in an amount not to exceed 50% of the total costs including all project costs and any other costs related to the project. The proceeds of such STAR bond financing may only be used to pay for incurred project costs.

(c) For a city proposing to finance a major motorsports complex pursuant to ~~subsection (a)(1)(C) or (a)(1)(E) of~~ K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,169(a)(1)(C) or (a)(1)(E), and amendments thereto, the secretary, upon approving the project, may approve such financing in an amount not to exceed 50% of the STAR bond project costs.

(d) The secretary may approve a STAR bond project located in a STAR bond project district established by a city prior to May 1, 2003.

(e) A project shall not be granted to any business that proposes to relocate its business from another area of the state into such city or county, for the purpose of consideration for a STAR bond project provided by K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,160 et seq., and amendments thereto.

(f) A project shall not be approved by the secretary if the market study required by K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,166(hh), and amendments thereto, indicates a substantial negative impact upon businesses in the project or complex market area or the granting of such project or complex would cause a default in the payment of any outstanding special obligation bond payable from revenues authorized pursuant to ~~subsection (a)(1) of~~ K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,169(a)(1), and amendments thereto.

(g) The maximum maturity of special obligation bonds payable primarily from revenues described by ~~subsection (a)(1) of~~ K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,169(a)(1), and amendments thereto, to finance STAR bond projects pursuant to this section shall not exceed 20 years.

(h) The secretary shall not approve any application for STAR bond project financing which is submitted by a city or county more than one year after the STAR bond project district in which the STAR bond project is located has been established. No later than July 1, 2017, the secretary shall adopt rules and regulations establishing

reasonable time frames for the initiation and completion of a STAR bond project and other time frames and milestones for developers in the secretary's discretion. The secretary may provide for reasonable financial penalties for the failure to meet such time frames and milestones. For all STAR bond project districts established after July 1, 2016, the failure of a project to be completed by the deadline established by the secretary shall result in automatic and immediate reversion to the state of Kansas of title to all real estate and any improvements thereon acquired or paid with STAR bond proceeds.

(i) Prior to approving a STAR bond project plan, the secretary shall complete an internal review of the overall viability of the project, and after consulting with the secretary of revenue, an assessment and certification of the impact of the project on sales tax revenues into the state general fund. Included in this review shall be an assessment of the private financing components of the STAR bond project.

(j) The secretary may condition approval of any application for STAR bond project financing on:

(1) The state retaining a reversionary interest in any real property acquired with STAR bond proceeds; and

(2) a requirement that up to 10% of any STAR bond proceeds be placed into escrow until any conditions imposed by the secretary have been met.

(k) Prior to approving a STAR bond project plan, the secretary shall require project developers to demonstrate private sector funding sufficient to fund 51% of the project costs. The secretary may require a reasonable portion of such funds to be placed into escrow as a condition of approving the project and that a percentage of such funds placed into escrow be forfeited to the state of Kansas as a penalty for failure to meet funding requirements set by the secretary. The secretary shall adopt rules and regulations to implement the provisions of this subsection no later than July 1, 2017.

As a condition of approving a project or the project financing, the secretary may require that the state retain a proportional carried equity interest in land and buildings to be financed by the proceeds of STAR bonds and receive a percentage of gross receipts received by the developer or developers until the STAR bonds have been repaid. The equity interest and percentage of gross receipts to be retained by the state of Kansas shall be based on the state sales and use tax portion of the funding for the project. Upon the state recovering the portion of the project financed with state sales taxes, the developer or developers shall have a right of first refusal to purchase the state's carried equity interest at a strike price or fair market value, whichever is greater. The secretary shall adopt rules and regulations to implement the provisions of this paragraph no later than July 1, 2017.

Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,166 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-17,166. (a) One or more projects may be undertaken by a city or county within an established STAR bond project district. Any city or county proposing to undertake a STAR bond project, shall prepare a STAR bond project plan in consultation with the planning commission of the city, and in consultation with the planning commission of the county, if any, if such project is located wholly outside the boundaries of the city. Any such project plan may be implemented in separate development stages.

(b) Any city or county proposing to undertake a STAR bond project within a STAR bond project district established pursuant to K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,165, and amendments thereto, shall prepare a feasibility study. The feasibility study shall contain

the following:

(1) Whether a STAR bond project's revenue and tax increment revenue and other available revenues under K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,169, and amendments thereto, are expected to exceed or be sufficient to pay for the project costs;

(2) the effect, if any, a STAR bond project will have on any outstanding special obligation bonds payable from the revenues described in K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,169, and amendments thereto;

(3) a statement of how the jobs and taxes obtained from the STAR bond project will contribute significantly to the economic development of the state and region;

(4) visitation expectations;

(5) the unique quality of the project;

(6) economic impact study pursuant to the following requirements:

(A) The economic impact, market and market impact studies required by K.S.A. 12-17,166(b)(6), (7) and (8), and amendments thereto, shall be commissioned and directed by the secretary and conducted by an independent economic consultant selected by the secretary. Prior to the secretary initiating the process of selecting and engaging an independent economic consultant for the economic impact, market and market impact studies, the secretary and the city or county proposing to undertake the STAR bond project shall consult for the limited purpose of determining an acceptable range of fees or costs for such studies; and

(B) the secretary shall solely procure, negotiate and execute an agreement with an independent economic consultant for the purpose of performing the economic impact, market and market impact studies and shall solely make payment for services rendered by the independent economic consultant in providing such studies in accordance with such agreement. The secretary shall advise the city or county proposing to undertake the STAR bond project of costs or fees and when such costs or fees are due under the secretary's agreement with the independent economic consultant. At the secretary's request, the city or county proposing to undertake the STAR bond project shall timely pay over to the secretary the amount of such costs or fees before such costs or fees are due. The secretary shall then make payment to the independent consultant in accordance with the secretary's agreement with the independent consultant. In the secretary's discretion, any costs or fees, including, but not limited to, costs that are not certain in time or amount, pursuant to the secretary's agreement with the independent consultant, may be paid to the independent economic consultant by the secretary and shall be reimbursed to the secretary by the city or county proposing to undertake the STAR bond project within 15 days of the secretary's payment thereof to the independent consultant. Upon approval of the STAR bond project plan, the city or county proposing to undertake the STAR bond project may recover the costs of the economic impact, market and market impact studies from the STAR bond proceeds;

(7) market study;

(8) market impact study;

(9) integration and collaboration with other resources or businesses;

(10) the quality of service and experience provided, as measured against national consumer standards for the specific target market;

(11) project accountability, measured according to best industry practices;

(12) the expected return on state and local investment that the project is anticipated to produce;

(13) a statement concerning whether a portion of the local sales and use taxes are pledged to other uses and are unavailable as revenue for the STAR bond project. If a portion of local sales and use taxes is so committed, the applicant shall describe the following:

(A) The percentage of city and county sales and use taxes collected that are so committed; and

(B) the date or dates on which the city and county sales and use taxes pledged to other uses can be pledged for repayment of bonds; and

(14) an anticipated principal and interest payment schedule on the bond issue.

The failure to include all information enumerated in this subsection in the feasibility study for a STAR bond project shall not affect the validity of bonds issued pursuant to this act.

(c) If the city or county determines the project is feasible, the project plan shall include:

(1) A summary of the feasibility study done as defined in subsection (b) of this section, and amendments thereto;

(2) a reference to the district plan established under K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,165, and amendments thereto, that identifies the project area that is set forth in the project plan that is being considered;

(3) a description and map of the project area to be redeveloped;

(4) the relocation assistance plan as described in K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,172, and amendments thereto;

(5) a detailed description of the buildings and facilities proposed to be constructed or improved in such area; ~~and~~

(6) a description of the proposed competitive bid process to be used for construction of the STAR bond project; and

(7) any other information the governing body of the city or county deems necessary to advise the public of the intent of the project plan.

(d) A copy of the STAR bond project plan prepared by a city shall be delivered to the board of county commissioners of the county and the board of education of any school district levying taxes on property within the STAR bond project area. A copy of the STAR bond project plan prepared by a county shall be delivered to the board of education of any school district levying taxes on property within the STAR bond project area.

(e) Upon a finding by the planning commission that the STAR bond project plan is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan for the development of the city, and a finding by the planning commission of the county, if any, with respect to a STAR bond project located wholly outside the boundaries of the city, that the STAR bond project plan is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan for the development of the county, the governing body of the city or county shall adopt a resolution stating that the city or county is considering the adoption of the STAR bond project plan. Such resolution shall:

(1) Give notice that a public hearing will be held to consider the adoption of the STAR bond project plan and fix the date, hour and place of such public hearing;

(2) describe the boundaries of the STAR bond project district within which the STAR bond project will be located and the date of establishment of such district;

(3) describe the boundaries of the area proposed to be included within the STAR

bond project area; and

(4) state that the STAR bond project plan, including a summary of the feasibility study, market study, relocation assistance plan and financial guarantees of the prospective developer and a description and map of the area to be redeveloped or developed are available for inspection during regular office hours in the office of the city clerk or county clerk, respectively.

(f) (1) The date fixed for the public hearing to consider the adoption of the STAR bond project plan shall be not less than 30 nor more than 70 days following the date of the adoption of the resolution fixing the date of the hearing.

(2) A copy of the city or county resolution providing for the public hearing shall be by certified mail, return receipt requested, sent by the city to the board of county commissioners of the county and by the city or county to the board of education of any school district levying taxes on property within the proposed STAR bond project area. Copies also shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested to each owner and occupant of land within the proposed STAR bond project area not more than 10 days following the date of the adoption of the resolution. The resolution shall be published once in the official city or county newspaper not less than one week nor more than two weeks preceding the date fixed for the public hearing. A sketch clearly delineating the area in sufficient detail to advise the reader of the particular land proposed to be included within the STAR bond project area shall be published with the resolution.

(3) At the public hearing, a representative of the city or county shall present the city's or county's proposed STAR bond project plan. Following the presentation of the STAR bond project area, all interested persons shall be given an opportunity to be heard. The governing body for good cause shown may recess such hearing to a time and date certain, which shall be fixed in the presence of persons in attendance at the hearing.

(g) The public hearing records and feasibility study shall be subject to the open records act, K.S.A. 45-215, and amendments thereto.

(h) Upon conclusion of the public hearing, the governing body may adopt the STAR bond project plan by ordinance or resolution passed upon a two-thirds vote of the members.

(i) After the adoption by the city or county governing body of a STAR bond project plan, the clerk of the city or county shall transmit a copy of the description of the land within the STAR bond project district, a copy of the ordinance or resolution adopting the plan and a map or plat indicating the boundaries of the district to the clerk, appraiser and treasurer of the county in which the district is located and to the governing bodies of the county and school district which levy taxes upon any property in the district. Such documents shall be transmitted following the adoption or modification of the plan or a revision of the plan on or before January 1 of the year in which the increment is first allocated to the taxing subdivision.

(j) If the STAR bond project plan is approved, the feasibility study shall be supplemented to include a copy of the minutes of the governing body meetings of any city or county whose bonding authority will be utilized in the STAR bond project, evidencing that a STAR bond project plan has been created, discussed and adopted by the city or county in a regularly scheduled open public meeting.

(k) Any substantial changes as defined in K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,162, and amendments thereto, to the STAR bond project plan as adopted shall be subject to a public hearing following publication of notice thereof at least twice in the official city

or county newspaper.

(l) Any STAR bond project shall be completed within 20 years from the date of the approval of the STAR bond project plan, unless an earlier completion deadline is set by the secretary pursuant to K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,164, and amendments thereto. The maximum maturity on bonds issued to finance projects pursuant to this act shall not exceed 20 years.

(m) Kansas resident employees shall be given priority consideration for employment in construction projects located in a STAR bond project area.

(n) Any developer of a STAR bond project shall commence work on the project within two years from the date of adoption of the STAR bond project plan, unless an earlier project initiative deadline is set by the secretary pursuant to K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,164, and amendments thereto. Should the developer fail to commence work on the STAR bond project within the ~~two-year~~ such period, funding for such project shall cease and the developer of such project or complex shall have one year to appeal to the secretary for reappraisal of such project and the funding for it. Should the project be reapproved, the ~~two-year~~ applicable period for commencement shall apply.

Sec. 4. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,169 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-17,169. (a) (1) Any city or county shall have the power to issue special obligation bonds in one or more series to finance the undertaking of any STAR bond project in accordance with the provisions of this act. Such special obligation bonds shall be made payable, both as to principal and interest:

(A) If approved by the secretary, from revenues of the city or county derived from or held in connection with the undertaking and carrying out of any STAR bond project or projects under this act including historic theater sales tax increments;

(B) from any private sources, contributions or other financial assistance from the state or federal government;

(C) from a pledge of 100% of the tax increment revenue received by the city from any local sales and use taxes, including the city's share of any county sales tax, which are collected from taxpayers doing business within that portion of the city's STAR bond project district established pursuant to K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,165, and amendments thereto, occupied by a STAR bond project, except for amounts committed to other uses by election of voters or pledged to bond repayment prior to the approval of the STAR bond project;

(D) at the option of the county in a city STAR bond project district, from a pledge of all of the tax increment revenues received by the county from any local sales and use taxes which are collected from taxpayers doing business within that portion of the city's STAR bond project district established pursuant to K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,165, and amendments thereto, except for amounts committed to other uses by election of voters or pledged to bond repayment prior to the approval of a STAR bond project;

(E) in a county STAR bond project district, from a pledge of 100% of the tax increment revenue received by the county from any county sales and use tax, but excluding any portions of such taxes that are allocated to the cities in such county pursuant to K.S.A. 12-192, and amendments thereto, which are collected from taxpayers doing business within that portion of the county's STAR bond project district established pursuant to K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,165, and amendments thereto, occupied by a STAR bond project;

(F) from a pledge of all of the tax increment revenue received from any state sales

taxes which are collected from taxpayers doing business within that portion of the city's or county's STAR bond project district occupied by a STAR bond project;

(G) at the option of the city or county and with approval of the secretary, from all or a portion of the transient guest tax of such city or county;

(H) at the option of the city or county and with approval of the secretary, (i) from a pledge of all or a portion of increased revenue received by the city or county from franchise fees collected from utilities and other businesses using public right-of-way within the STAR bond project district; or (ii) from a pledge of all or a portion of the revenue received by a city or county from local sales taxes or local transient guest and local use taxes; or

(I) by any combination of these methods.

The city or county may pledge such revenue to the repayment of such special obligation bonds prior to, simultaneously with, or subsequent to the issuance of such special obligation bonds.

(2) Bonds issued under ~~paragraph (1) of this subsection (a)(1)~~ shall not be general obligations of the city or the county, nor in any event shall they give rise to a charge against its general credit or taxing powers, or be payable out of any funds or properties other than any of those set forth in ~~paragraph (1) of this subsection (a)(1)~~ and such bonds shall so state on their face.

(3) Bonds issued under the provisions of ~~paragraph (1) of this subsection (a)(1)~~ shall be special obligations of the city or county and are declared to be negotiable instruments. Such bonds shall be executed by the mayor and clerk of the city or the chairperson of the board of county commissioners and the county clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the city or county. All details pertaining to the issuance of such special obligation bonds and terms and conditions thereof shall be determined by ordinance of the city or by resolution of the county.

All special obligation bonds issued pursuant to this act and all income or interest therefrom shall be exempt from all state taxes. Such special obligation bonds shall contain none of the recitals set forth in K.S.A. 10-112, and amendments thereto. Such special obligation bonds shall, however, contain the following recitals: (i) The authority under which such special obligation bonds are issued; (ii) such bonds are in conformity with the provisions, restrictions and limitations thereof; and (iii) that such special obligation bonds and the interest thereon are to be paid from the money and revenue received as provided in ~~paragraph (1) of this subsection (a)(1)~~.

(4) Any city or county issuing special obligation bonds under the provisions of this act may refund all or part of such issue pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 10-116a, and amendments thereto.

(b) (1) Subject to the provisions of ~~paragraph (2) of this subsection (b)(2)~~, any city shall have the power to issue full faith and credit tax increment bonds to finance the undertaking, establishment or redevelopment of any major motorsports complex, as defined in ~~subsection (k) of K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,162(m)~~, and amendments thereto. Such full faith and credit tax increment bonds shall be made payable, both as to principal and interest: (A) From the revenue sources identified in ~~paragraph (1) of subsection (a)(1)~~ or by any combination of these sources; and (B) subject to the provisions of ~~paragraph (2) of this subsection (b)(2)~~, from a pledge of the city's full faith and credit to use its ad valorem taxing authority for repayment thereof in the event all other authorized sources of revenue are not sufficient.

(2) Except as provided in ~~paragraph (3) of this subsection (b)(3)~~, before the governing body of any city proposes to issue full faith and credit tax increment bonds as authorized by this subsection, the feasibility study required by ~~subsection (b) of K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,166(b)~~, and amendments thereto, shall demonstrate that the benefits derived from the project will exceed the cost and that the income therefrom will be sufficient to pay the costs of the project. No full faith and credit tax increment bonds shall be issued unless the governing body states in the resolution required by ~~subsection (e) of K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,166(e)~~, and amendments thereto, that it may issue such bonds to finance the proposed STAR bond project. The governing body may issue the bonds unless within 60 days following the conclusion of the public hearing on the proposed STAR bond project plan a protest petition signed by 3% of the qualified voters of the city is filed with the city clerk in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq., and amendments thereto. If a sufficient petition is filed, no full faith and credit tax increment bonds shall be issued until the issuance of the bonds is approved by a majority of the voters voting at an election thereon. Such election shall be called and held in the manner provided by the general bond law. The failure of the voters to approve the issuance of full faith and credit tax increment bonds shall not prevent the city from issuing special obligation bonds in accordance with this section. No such election shall be held in the event the board of county commissioners or the board of education determines, as provided in K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,165, and amendments thereto, that the proposed STAR bond project district will have an adverse effect on the county or school district.

(3) As an alternative to ~~paragraph (2) of this subsection (b)(2)~~, any city which adopts a STAR bond project plan for a major motorsports complex, but does not state its intent to issue full faith and credit tax increment bonds in the resolution required by ~~subsection (e) of K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,166(e)~~, and amendments thereto, and has not acquired property in the STAR bond project area may issue full faith and credit tax increment bonds if the governing body of the city adopts a resolution stating its intent to issue the bonds and the issuance of the bonds is approved by a majority of the voters voting at an election thereon. Such election shall be called and held in the manner provided by the general bond law. The failure of the voters to approve the issuance of full faith and credit tax increment bonds shall not prevent the city from issuing special obligation bonds pursuant to ~~paragraph (1) of subsection (a)(1)~~. Any project plan adopted by a city prior to the effective date of this act in accordance with K.S.A. 12-1772, and amendments thereto, shall not be invalidated by any requirements of this act.

(4) During the progress of any major motorsports complex project in which the project costs will be financed, in whole or in part, with the proceeds of full faith and credit tax increment bonds, the city may issue temporary notes in the manner provided in K.S.A. 10-123, and amendments thereto, to pay the project costs for the major motorsports complex project. Such temporary notes shall not be issued and the city shall not acquire property in the STAR bond project area until the requirements of ~~paragraph (2) or (3) of this subsection (b)(2) or (b)(3)~~, whichever is applicable, have been met.

(5) Full faith and credit tax increment bonds issued under this subsection shall be general obligations of the city and are declared to be negotiable instruments. Such bonds shall be issued in accordance with the general bond law. All such bonds and all income or interest therefrom shall be exempt from all state taxes. The amount of the full

faith and credit tax increment bonds issued and outstanding which exceeds 3% of the assessed valuation of the city shall be within the bonded debt limit applicable to such city.

(6) Any city issuing full faith and credit tax increment bonds under the provisions of this subsection may refund all or part of such issue pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 10-116a, and amendments thereto.

(c) For each project financed with special obligation bonds payable from the revenues described in subsection (a)(1), the city or county shall prepare and submit to the secretary by October 1 of each year, a report describing the status of any projects within such STAR bond project area, any expenditures of the proceeds of special obligation bonds that have occurred since the last annual report and any expenditures of the proceeds of such bonds expected to occur in the future, including the amount of sales tax revenue, how such revenue has been spent, the projected amount of such revenue and the anticipated use of such revenue. The department of commerce shall compile this information and submit a report annually to the governor and the legislature by February 1 of each year.

(d) A city or county may use the proceeds of special obligation bonds or any uncommitted funds derived from sources set forth in this section to pay the bond project costs as defined in K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-17,162, and amendments thereto, to implement the STAR bond project plan.

(e) With respect to a STAR bond project district established prior to January 1, 2003, for which, prior to January 1, 2003, the secretary made a finding as provided in subsection (a) ~~of this section~~ that a STAR bond project would create a major tourism area for the state, such special obligation bonds shall be payable both as to principal and interest, from a pledge of all of the revenue from any transient guest, state and local sales and use taxes collected from taxpayers as provided in subsection (a) ~~of this section~~ whether or not revenues from such taxes are received by the city.;

On page 8, in line 27, after "12-17,162," by inserting "12-17,164, 12-17,166, 12-17,169,";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, after the first semicolon by inserting "relating to oversight of STAR bonds by the secretary of commerce;"; in line 5, after "12-17,162," by inserting "12-17,164, 12-17,166, 12-17,169,"

and SB 474 be passed as further amended.

A motion by Senator Tyson to amend **SB 474** failed.

HCR 5008 be adopted.

SB 422, SB 445, SB 479; S Sub HB 2131 be passed over and retain a place on the calendar.

CHANGE OF REFERENCE

The President withdrew **HB 2509** from the Committee on **Ways and Means**, and referred the bill to the Committee on **Commerce**.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Ethics and Elections** recommends **HB 2558** be amended on page 1, in line 6, before "Section" by inserting "New"; following line 8, by inserting:

"Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 25-21a01 is hereby amended to read as follows: 25-

21a01. (a) On and after January 1, 2017, all primary elections for members of the governing body and other elected officials of any municipality shall be held on the first Tuesday in August of 2017 and on such date thereafter of odd-numbered years, and all general elections for members of the governing body and other elected officials of any municipality shall be held on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday in November of 2017 of odd-numbered years and on such date thereafter.

(b) The term of members of governing bodies and other elected officials of any municipality that would expire at any time in 2017 shall expire on the second Monday in January of 2018, when newly elected members of the governing body and other newly elected officials shall take office.

(c) The governing body of the municipality shall establish by ordinance or resolution terms of office of elected officials to comply with this act.

(d) Primary elections for any municipality shall be conducted as provided in K.S.A. 25-202, and amendments thereto. A primary election shall only be required as provided in K.S.A. 25-2021 and 25-2108a, and amendments thereto, or as otherwise required by law.

(e) The filing deadline for all candidates for any municipality, unless otherwise provided by law, shall be as provided in K.S.A. 25-205, and amendments thereto.

(f) Any person who meets the qualifications for the office sought may become a candidate for municipal office by filing a declaration of intent to become a candidate with the county election officer accompanied by a filing fee of \$20.

(g) "Municipality" means: (1) Any city, consolidated city-county created under K.S.A. 12-340 et seq., and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 12-360 et seq., and amendments thereto, school district, any board of public utilities created under K.S.A. 13-1220 et seq., and amendments thereto, community college, drainage district, extension district created under K.S.A. 2-623 et seq., and amendments thereto, irrigation district, improvement district created under K.S.A. 19-2753 et seq., and amendments thereto, water district created under K.S.A. 19-3501 et seq., and amendments thereto, and hospital district created under K.S.A. 80-2501 et seq., and amendments thereto.

(2) The term does not include any special district where the election of members of the governing body is conducted at a meeting of the special district.

(h) Cities and hospital districts may provide for elections of elected officials in even-numbered years in order to provide for staggered terms of office or for three-year terms of office for elected officials.

Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 80-2508 is hereby amended to read as follows: 80-2508.

(a) Subject to the limitations provided in this act, any of the four methods described in this section may be used in the selection of members of boards. The four methods are:

(1) Elections of board members shall be held at the annual meeting of the qualified electors of the hospital district for the positions on the board which are to expire in such year.

(2) Board members shall be appointed by the governing bodies of the political subdivisions joining in the operation and maintenance of the hospital.

(3) (A) Elections of board members for four-year terms shall be held on the Tuesday following the first Monday in November of odd-numbered years for the positions on the board which are to expire in such year. All positions shall be at-large. Each board member shall take office on the second Monday in January following the

date of election.

(B) Any person desiring to become a candidate for board member shall file with the county election officer of the county in which the political subdivisions joining in the operation and maintenance of the hospital, or the greater portion of the area thereof, are located, before the filing deadline specified in K.S.A. 25-2109, and amendments thereto, either a petition signed by not less than 50 electors eligible to vote for a candidate or a declaration of intent to become a candidate together with a filing fee in the amount of \$20.

(C) The county election officer of the county specified in paragraph (B) shall prepare the ballots for such election including ballots for that portion of the district located in any other county. The county election officers of each county shall conduct the election in their respective counties, and the board of county canvassers of each such county shall certify the results of the votes cast in its county to the board of county canvassers in the county in which the ballots for the election were prepared.

(D) Ballots shall be prepared in such manner that each voter is instructed to vote for the same number of candidates as the number of positions to be filled. Such instruction shall specify that the voter may vote for fewer than the total number of candidates for which the voter is qualified to vote.

(4) (A) Elections of board members for three-year or four-year terms shall be held on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday in November of each ~~odd-numbered~~ year for the positions on the board which are to expire in such year. All positions shall be at-large. Each board member shall take office on the second Monday in January.

(B) Any person desiring to become a candidate for board member shall file with the county election officer of the county in which the political subdivisions joining in the operation and maintenance of the hospital, or the greater portion of the area thereof, are located, before the filing deadline specified in K.S.A. 25-2109, and amendments thereto, either a petition signed by not less than 50 electors eligible to vote for a candidate or a declaration of intent to become a candidate together with a filing fee in the amount of \$20.

(C) The county election officer of the county specified in paragraph (B) shall prepare the ballots for such election including ballots for that portion of the district located in any other county. The county election officers of each county shall conduct the election in their respective counties, and the board of county canvassers of each such county shall certify the results of the votes cast in its county to the board of county canvassers in the county in which the ballots for the election were prepared.

(D) Ballots shall be prepared in such manner that each voter is instructed to vote for the same number of candidates as the number of positions to be filled. Such instruction shall specify that the voter may vote for fewer than the total number of candidates for which the voter is qualified to vote.

(b) If the method of selection of members of the board of any hospital is the method provided for in subsection (a)(1) or (2), such method of selection may be changed to the method provided for in subsection (a)(3) or (4) by majority vote of the qualified electors voting at an annual meeting thereof. Whenever the method of selection of members of a board is changed to the method provided for in subsection (a) (3) or (4), the term of each member serving on the board at the time of the change of method of selection shall expire on May 1 of the year in which the term of such member is to expire, except that for the purpose of electing members to the board at a time to

coincide with elections for other purposes, the board may extend the term of any member for not to exceed one year from the date such member's term would otherwise expire and the board of Sublette hospital district may change prior to the election the length of term for one member to be elected at the 1997 election from four years to two years. If the members of the board are currently selected pursuant to subsection (a)(3), the method of selection may be changed to the method provided for in subsection (a)(4) by a majority vote of the board members.

Sec. 4. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 25-21a01 and 80-2508 are hereby repealed.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "concerning"; in line 2, by striking all before the period and inserting "elections; amending K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 25-21a01 and 80-2508 and repealing the existing sections"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Natural Resources** recommends **HB 2059** be amended by adoption of the amendments recommended by the Senate Committee on Natural Resources as reported in the Journal of the Senate on February 8, 2016, and the bill, as printed as Senate Substitute for HB 2059, be further amended on page 1, by striking all in lines 7 through 35;

On page 3, in line 25, after "(g)" by inserting "(1)"; in line 33, after the period by inserting:

"(2) An applicant for a permit to appropriate under this subsection shall submit a work plan with such applicant's application. The work plan shall include milestones for implementing the water transfer project. The chief engineer may conditionally approve such application and work plan and assess progress of the implementation of such work plan.

(3) No application for a permit to appropriate under this subsection shall be submitted prior to December 1, 2016.

(4) ";

Also on page 3, in line 35, after "engineer" by inserting ":

(A) ";

Also on page 3, in line 37, after "time" by inserting ";

(B) determines that such applicant cannot successfully meet the milestones contained in the work plan";

Also on page 3, in line 41, by striking "2-3304 and"; also in line 41, by striking "are" and inserting "is";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "concerning"; in line 2, by striking all before "water"; in line 3, by striking "2-3304 and"; in line 4, by striking "sections" and inserting "section";

And the bill be passed as amended.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate adjourned until 2:30 p.m., Thursday, March 17, 2016.

ROSE MARIE GLATT, CHARLENE BAILEY, CINDY SHEPARD, *Journal Clerks.*
COREY CARNAHAN, *Secretary of the Senate.*

